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Civie-Minded Women Originated Community House

Thirty years ago the weak pulse of a growing village, now

the heart of a prosperous community of over 20,000 residents.
This is the story of the Birmingham Community House—the
house with a heart and the “Heart of Birmingham.”
Reverend Charles H. McCurdy, former rector of St. James
Episcopal Church, once said that “all of our modern move-
ments of philanthropy, which shed a luster over many a
dark spot in our civilization, had their origin-in the church.”
Birmingham’s Community House at Bates and Townsend,
which celebrates its 30th birthday in 1953, is no exception.

In 1920 a small group of Bir-T
mingham women residents had lis-
tened for years to the complaint
that their village had no recrea-
tional center and no community
meeting place.

Reverend McCurdy, rector of St.
James at the time, also discovered
that only one woman out of five
in his parish was active in church
affairs, Along with the women res-
idents, Rev. McCurdy decided that
what Birmingham needed was a
community meeting place,

On the corner of West Maple and
Bates was a forgotten and unused
frame house that the originators
of the first community house de-
cided would make a suitable home
for this new village project.
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BY RUMMAGE sales, fairs and
bazaars, the League of St. James’
Women raised $3,500 to be used
in remodeling what was soon to
be Birmingham’s first community
house.

On April 28, 1923, the house was
dedicated. Those women who were
most instrumental in founding this
new community project constituted
the first seven-woman board of
directors.

The first board consisted of:
Chairman Mrs. Frank Miller, Mrs.
Arthur Hartwell, Mrs. John H.
Marlotte, Mrs. William C. Harris,
Mrs. A_lbert Peters, Mrs. George T.
Hendrie and Mrs, Charles J. Shain.
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Roll Call

In Twenties

A group of promi-
nent workers in the
May 14-26 (1928)
Community House
fund-raising drive pose
before the large sign
at Maple and Wood-
ward avenues when
the first half of the
$125,000 quota was
passed. The following
year the present Com-
munity House was
built.

<

Starting as a membership organ-
ization, the Community House grew
in popularity with the citizens of
Birmingham.
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THE HOUSE was used as a
luncheon club for business girls,
meeting place for Camp Fire Girls
and Bluebirds, the Civic League of
Women, a young girls ‘club, and a
play day for boys. It also contained
a useful and complete information
file. Boy Scouts streamed in and
out of the House 37 times during
the year.

Some townspeople were slow in
using the varied House facilities.
They had to be convinced that the
House had been separated from the
church and that it was a place for
everyone—a non-sectarian, non-
partisan and non-exclusive com-
munity home, where all were wel-
come,
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FIRST COMMUNITY House
hostess was Miss Mary Martin, who
served from 1923 to 1925. She was
succeeded by. Miss Mary Clark
Griffith, who remained until 1931,
or about a year after the new
Community House was opened.
Other hostesses and the years
they served were Mrs. Hope Lewis
(1931-32), Mrs. Edith Wall (1932-
36), Miss Judith Lally (1937-44),
Miss Fay Jasman (1944-45), Miss
Amy Wild (1945-46).

George T. Hendrie, Mrs. Frederick Dickinson
Mann and Mrs. Charles J. Shain.

A Wealth of Effort

In every progressive community there
are numerous groups and organizations of
men and women, boys and girls, their dedi-
cated efforts being to improve both them-
selves and the place in which they live.

Birmingham and vicinity is noted for
the variety of such groups and organiza-
tions. Some of them came into being to
develop the cultural facets of their mem-
bers; others labor to participate in various
philanthropic programs . . . to bring into
the lives of others aid and assistance,
whatever their needs may be.

Herewith is presented the names and
something of the activities of most of
these local groups and organizations.

Hostess tdday is Mrs. Carleton
H. Isley, who succeeded Miss Wild.

First annual maintenance cost
was estimated at $1,500. A benefit
garden party was held at the
Bloomfield Hills estate of the
George Hendries, clearing over
$700 toward the sum. Similar bene-
fits were held in the following sum-
mers to support this worthy proj-
ect.

One reason for the “large”
maintenance cost was that once
smoke and soot spread throughout
the House one morning, because
young people’s Charleston dancing

the night before had collapsed the
furnace pipes!
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THE TOWN soon was convinced
that it had started a worthwhile
project because the building was
much used. A new and larger house
soon was dreamed of by many resi-
dents.

It was not long before this dream
became a reality. A community Roll
Call, a method used to this day,
was adopted in 1924 by the Board
of Directors as a means to raise
funds to support the present House
and to soon construct a new home

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT: Mrs. C. R. Wilson,* general chairman of the drive; Miss Mary Clark Griffith,* resident
hostess; Mrs. W. G. Lerchen,* Mrs. Frank Schuell,* Mrs. Robert Traub, Miss Sarah Sly,* Mrs. William Harris, Mrs.
, Mrs. A. J. Stahelin, Mrs. Jay Walsh, Mrs. Frederipk Holt,* Mrs. R. H.

to house the increasing community
activities.

Campaign for funds for the new
House had been carried on from
1926-28. Over 1,000 small and
larger neighborhood meetings wera
held to interest citizens in the idea
of a new Community House.
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BY GIFTS of $500 or $1000 each,
ten or eleven citizens had acquired
the necessary land for the future
House at the northwest corner of
Bates and Townsend streets. At
the premiere of the present Bir-
mingham Theatre, a benefit for
the proposed House, Mrs. Charles
Shain’s speech about the hoped-for
new building was climaxed by her
receiving a $1,000 check from a
Bloomfield Hills resident.

Under Mrs. Shain’s chairman-
ship, 200 women worked to raise
the necessary $125,000. More than
$115,000 was raised in cash and
pledges from residents of Birming-
ham and neighboring communities
who hoped for a new House.

In a heavy downpour on April 28,
1929, the corner-stone for the new
building was laid. The ceremony
speech was read by the late Dr,
Marquis of Christ Church Cran-
brook.
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AMONG THOSE present at the
eeremony were Mr. and Mrs. Henry
Ford who rarely made public ap-
pearances.

Housewarming in the new Com-
munity House was held on March
17, 1930, with from 5,000 to 7,000
people attending.

During the depression days, the
new Community House somehow
managed to be kept open to serve
the Birmingham community. A

$10,000 mortgage was negotiated
but it took months to do so.

There had to be salary cuts for
(Continued on Page 7)
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Birmingham's Oldest
DEPARTMENT STORE

CONGRATULATES THE ECCENTRIC ON ITS

75th ANNIVERSARY

| The " |
F. J. Mulholland
COMPANY

THE FAVORITE PLACE TO SHOP IN THE COMMUNITY
FOR THE PAST 30 YEARS

Founded by the late Frank J. Mulholland, Sr. in 1922 as a well-rounded family de-
partment store, it is still in the active operation of the Mulholland idmily and continuing
in the traditions which he so thoroughly established. Providing high quality merchandise
at prices that would appeal to the majority of people and treating all with sincerety and
fairness, has been the code of operation since the beginning. Depending upon Mulhol-
land’s for clothing for every member of the family, as well as things for the home itself,
is taken for granted in this wonderful community which has grown to four times the size

it was when the firm commenced operation. The F. J. Mulholland Co. will continue to
serve Birmingham—

COMBINING NATIONALLY ADVERTISED MERCHANDISE
- WITH INDEPENDENT OWNERSHIP, FEATURING
FAIR AND FRIENDLY MERCHANDISING METHODS

233 North Woodward Avenue




B’ham Women’s Club City’s First Ladies’ Group

The Birmingham Woman’s Club has the distinction of be-+ ‘

ing the oldest orgdnwatlon for women in Birmingham.
It was founded in 1890 under the leadership of Mrs. Au-
gusta Marsh, wife of the Presbyterian minister then serving

that church. This was at a time when the population of the N Baldwin,

village was about one thousand.
The first meetings of the group of 10 charter members

were held in the Pre%bvterian

Manse at the corner of West

Maple and Bates which is now part of the Post Office grounds.

This building was later used ast
the first home of the Community
House when that association was
organized in 1923 and once more
the Literary Club held its meetings |
under this same roof, for a few
years, until the completion of the
Baldwin Public Library. This then
became the permanent meeting
place of the club.
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MRS. MARSH was the first
president of the club and the sec-
-ond was Mrs. W. D. Clizbe.
The club was organized for cul-
tural purposes and study of world

conditions of that time. The pro-
grams of those -early years list
varied tépics of discussion, indicat-
ing a very broad and serious line
of study by the members who were

called upon to write at least two |

papers a year on the chosen sub-
jects. 5

The interests of the group gradu-
ally broadened as the club became
affiliated with the Michigan State
Federation of Women’s Clubs in
1899 and with the Oakland County
Federation in 1903 and with the
Detroit Federation in 1919.

Lathrup Women’s Club
Born of School Needs

Early in February 1939, Mrs.
Earl Doig invited some of her
neighbors to tea. They discussed
the idea of starting a mothers’
club which would provide many
needed items for the Lathrup
school in Southfield township, and
called a meeting for the mothers
of school children for February 15
at the Lathrup school.

In the meantime other women in
the area became interested and, at
the first session, the.Lathrup Town-
site Woman’s Club was organized.

Mrs. Doig was named president,
with Mrs. Howard Stock, vice-
president; Mrs. Lee Baker, secre-
tary; and - Mrs. John Scolaro,
treasurer.

The 86 charter members decided
that obtaining needed school equip-
ment would be the first order of
business, and that meetings would
be held monthly with four mem-
bers serving as hostesses.
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DURING THE first four years
of the organization’s history, over
$1,150 was raised for school equip-
ment. Other early activities in-
cluded the formation of a reading
club and a junior activities depart-
ment.

A girl scout troop was formed,

dancing classes started, and a Red
Cross unit organized. The annual
project of Christmas baskets for
needy families was undertaken and
a program of social activities car-
ried on.

In May, 1942, the group felt 1t
had outgrown the original consti-
tution and a new constitution and
set of by-laws drawn up.

Aims of the organization were
broadened to include not only the
school but all activities of Lathrup
townsite.

During the war years the club
raised money for hospitalized vet-
erans, overseas packages, Veteran
Rehabilitation Center, and the Ida
Hibbard Fund for the purchase of
artificial limbs for war wounded.
O.\éer $4,000 was raised for service
aid.
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IN MARCH, 1948, the group
joined the Detroit Federation of
Women’s Clubs and two years later,
at its eleventh anniversary celebra-
tion in 1950, changed the title of
the organization to the Lathrup
Women’s Club.

The club, which now ‘numbers
over 300 members, meets monthly
at “The House in the Woods”, the
former residence of Louise Lathrup.

FROM ITS foundmg, the club
| has probably taken a more active

interest in village affairs than any
other woman’s crganization; due
in part to the influence of Miss
who was a char-
ter member and, until her death
in 1915, a most active and ener-
getic member.

She was untiring in her efforts

| to improve conditions in the vil-

lage of Birmingham. She brought
her ideas and suggestions to the
Literary Society and, through its

loyal support and cooperation,
many town improvements were
realized.

The list of committees always
included one on “Town Improve-
ment”. Through the efforts of this
committee, many projects were
undertaken and much was definite-
ly accomplished in the improve-
ment of local parks, campaign for
cleaner streets, an active interest
in affairs of the Oakland County
House, many years prior to the
erection of the present buildings.
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AN URGENT campaign was
waged for the establishment of a
waiting room for passengers of the
interurban line, then operating be-
tween Detroit and Pontiac.

In 1909 the following typical
resolution was passed at one of
the meetings:

“Resolved that the Woman’s
Literary Club request the Village
Board through their Committee ap-
pointed to confer with the D.U.R.,
to ask the following:

“A waiting room

“A smoke consumer at the Pow-
er House

“A stop to the noise from the
exhaust at Power House
. “One fare to our Cemetery and
return

“Working men’s tickets at cer-
tain hours and within certain
limits.”
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WHEN WOMEN became voters,
schools of instruction were super-
vised by members of the Literary
Club.

The original name of Ladies’
Literary Society was changed in
1920 to Woman’s Literary Club and
in 1934 was changed to Birming-
ham Woman’s Club, as it is known
today.

For 30 years the meetings were
held weekly on Tuesday afternoons
from September until June. For
many years the meetings were held
at the homes of members until the

membership grew from the arigi-
nal 10 to 30 and then to 50, when
it became necessary to have a
larger meeting place.

During its early years, the Club
was a center of social activity.
Records show that the organization
was responsible for an annual re-
ception for the school teachers: for
Washington and Lincoln banquets,
Pioneer Day when the oldest resi-
dents were guests, and many other
social affairs. There was always a
Christmas party for the County
House inmates.
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FINANCIAL AID was given to
many causes during those early
years. The club contributed $100
annually for many years to the
Baldwin Scholarship Fund, a gen-
erous donation each year to the
Red Cross and, during the war
years, this was greatly increased.

One item shows the expenditure
of $75 for equipment placed in the
park at the corner of West Maple
and Southfield, which was donated
to the village by Miss Martha
Baldwin. Thege was a day set when
the members of the club gathered
there and gave the grounds a good
cleaning.

The money for these contribu-
tions was earned by some form of
entertamment pageant or play
given by the club usually with lo-
cal talent.

Continuing this policy through
the years, the club has contributed
annually to some specific cause,
besides which $100 is included in
each budget for charitable pur-
poses.
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AMONG OTHER contributions
to various causes, the club recent-
ly provided furnishings for the
Oakland County Juvenile Detention
Included were gayly colored bed
spreads and equipment for the rec-
reation room. $400 was given to-
wards their Camp Oakland and
$100 was given to the new Y.M.C.A.
building in Birmingham.

The Library has been remember-
ed with gifts and a memorial plan
is in operation by which books are
placed in the library in memory of
deceased club members.

The current year’s objective is
the purchasing of equipment for
use in the Sister Kenny Polio Cen-
ter. The Club also is assisting the
State Federation in its prOJect for
the future establishment in Michi-
gan of a Girl’s Town.

“YOU.CAN GET IT AT NIXON’S” was the by-word in
‘Birmingham years ago. The Volney Nixon store was on the
west side of S. Woodward, approximately where the McBride

hardware now stands. Mr. Nixon (in chair) is shown with
Samuel Mills, known as “the best cooper that ever lived m

this vicinity.”

|May, 1953
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BIRMINGHAM ECCENTRIC
75th Anniversary Edition

IN 1915, a new plan was intro-
duced as an experiment and has
become a permanent feature of the
club. The membership was divided
into four departments—originally,
the art, household economics, poet-
ry and world’s work departments.

The departments are now under
the titles of fine arts, American
home, literature and juniors.

The former world’s work depart-
ment is now laffiliated with the
Ruth Shain Class on International
Reldtions. This class is sponsored
jointly with the AAUW and meets
Tuesday mornings.

One general meeting of the en-
tire membership was held the first
Tuesday of each month and the
gepartments met the third Tues-

ay.

The Birmingham Woman’s Club
now has a membership of 180,
which includes a junior department
that was sponsored in 1946 and
has developed into a vigorous addi-
tion to the senior organization.

The Golden Jubilee year of the
Club was celebrated in 1940 with
appropriate programs during that
time.

The present officers of the Bir-
mingham Woman’s Club are:
President, Mrs. Paul C. Grant;
vice presidents, Mrs. Carl Rice and
Mrs. Floyd Franklin; recording
secretary, Mrs. Charles James;
corresponding secretary, Mrs.
George Ward; treasurer, Mrs. Nor-
man Porter.

4 Women Launched
B’ham AAUW
On Oct. 16,1920

The Birmingham branch of the
American Association of Univer-
sity Women has grown from four
women in 1920 to a present mem-
bership of more than 350.

Its activities are all-encompass-
ing, including study groups on
child care, creative writing, drama,
book study, children’s theater and
puppeteermg

A notice in an Eccentric of 1920
resulted in a meeting of sixteen
women on October 16 at the home
of Mrs. Charles J. Shain. Aim of
the new organization was uniting
the college women ‘of the vicinity
for educational, civic and social
programs, as well as union with the
national association’s work.
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ORIGINAL MEETINGS were
held semi-monthly in the homes of
members. An early project was the
obtaining of the services of a
visiting nurse for the city. Funds
were raised by a style show spon-
sored by the AAUW, with local
senior high girls as their guests.
The show has become an annual
event.

The annual booksale, now a
prominent Birmingham tradition,
began in 1927. The “Saturday
Club”, formed in 1925, provided a
play class for children from 8 to
10 years old, with facilities includ-
ing clay modeling, leather and
metal craft, sewing, knitting, sim-
ple woodwork, dramatics, games
and singing.
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INSTRUMENTAL in the de-
velopment of the association was
its first and four-time president,
Mrs. Charles J. Shain, now a life
member.

Mrs. Shain has gained a wide
reputation in the field of interna-
tional relations, having conducted
an AAUW sponsored class in in-
ternational relations at the Com-
munity House for 84 consecutive
years. She was among the found-
ers of the Women’s International
Education Council in Detroit, and
in 1925 helped to form a new wom-
en’s discussion group which later
became the Detroit branch of the
Foreign Policy Association.

Mrs. Shain was twice a national
deleoate to the International
AAUW meetings in Paris, 1922,
and Toronto. 1947.

Two AAUW members. Mrs. L. B.
Sappington and Mrs. Alec B. Par-
nie, are on the Board of Education.
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PRESENT OFFICERS include
Mrs. Kenneth Swartwood, presie
dent; Mrs. Burley Laurlmore, first
vice- presulent Mrs. F. J. Finken-

auver, Jr., second  vice- presidents
Mrs. N. Talmage, recording?
secretary; Mrs. W. F. Royer; Mras,

Charles Shaw, treasurer; and Mrs,
E.:W. McCaul, program chalrman,
A monthly luncheon . meeting?
rs i1y

various fields.



‘SHOES

100 N. Wooadward e Birminghom, Mich.
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Selections

In Fashionable

FOOTWEAR

For All Members of the Family

i

Lasting
Spring*

Perfect blue - white dia-
monds in solitaire, or with
round, or baguette shoulder
stone settings. Choose
white, yellow gold or plati-
num, Highest quality guar-
anteed in every ring.

Stanton |
Hall* ‘ |

Heirloom Sterling pat-
terns are famous for
youth . . . freshness
. . . originality
and this magnificent
sterling silver can’t
wear out even in a cen-  Windermere

tury of usel A
Y bone china i

-

A table set with Royal Doulton is a

table royally endowed.
IMPORTED CHINA DINNERWARE
AND ODD CUPS AND SAUCERS.

Finest selection of Longines-Wittnauer, Hamilton, Omega,
Universal Geneve, and Elgin watches to choose from in a wide
range of styles and prices. They’re the most treasured watches
of all and they’re found at AXLER’S.

AXLER'S

Jewelry and Gifts

MI 4-4234 Birmingham Theatre Bldg.

LADIES' SHOES by
PARADISE — QUEEN QUALITY
JOHANSEN — GRAYFLEX
APTITUDES — RISQUES

CHILDREN'S SHOES by

PIED PIPER and
'GERBERICH

MEN'S SHOES by

NUNN BUSH and
EDGERTON

BOSTONIAN and
MANSFIELD

Residents of the Birmingham
Area Have Learned to Depend
on




left. At right

about 1898).

Meeting Places
For Masons

B'HAM MASONS’ first
hall was old Jennings
building, second from
the corner in photo at

ent home, former Ford
residence (photo taken

S St 1

is pres-

Masonic Lodge Chartered Here 102 Years Ago

Just as Masonry is one of the oldest crafts and orgamza-
tions in the world, so is it one of the oldest groups in Bir- 447 from the .dispensation class in-

mingham.
It began here in 1849 when

William Brown and an inter-

ested group of local men petltloned the Grand Lodge of

+

Michigan for a charter.

The petition was at first refused
because several Masons, then mem-
bers of Pontiac Lodge No. 21,
signed the petition.

It was reasoned that, should the
petition be granted, these men
would be members of both lodges,
a practice frowned upon in the ear-
ly days. The affected members
promised to drop out of the Pontiac
group and a dispensation or pro-
visional charter was granted.

On Thursday evening, April 25,
1850, Birmingham Lodge No. 44,
under dispensation, held its first
meeting, choosing for their gather-
ing place the upstairs of the Jen-
nings building, a modest country
town structure on North Saginaw
street.
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THE SITE of the building was
destined to become a part of Wil-
son’s Drug store as Saginaw street
and the country town passed to
Woodward avenue and the present
Birmingham.

The Jennings building was the
second structure north of the corner
of Maple and Woodward avenues
on the west side of the street. It
had four double recessed doors with
glass two-thirds of the way down
and wood panels below, which
opened with china knobs.into the
tailor shops of Mr. Jennings and
John Bodine—after one had climbed

several wooden steps.

The “upstairs” of stores at that
time were simply upstairs. In most
cases there was little finish or an
attractive appearance. Probably
the plain word “hall” describes as
well as any the appearance of the
space used for these first meetings.
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IN 1850, store owners in small
towns did not figure a financial re-
turn per cubic foot for their store—
they used the first floor for their
own purposes, while the second
floor was simply there if any one
wished to use it.

The group of men who met that
spring evening did so with the firm
determination to establish and
maintain the order and principles
of a Masonic Lodge in Birmingham.
William Brown was elected master;
Friend Belding, senior warden and
Scriba Blakeslee, junior warden.
Roswell T. Merrill, Peter Dox,
George W. Merrill and Dr. Eben-
ezer Raynale were the members to
attend that first meeting.

William McKellop claimed the
honor of being the first to apply
for a degree conferred by this
lodge. On July 18, 1850, Hugh
McCurdy, who is deseribed as
“probably the most illustrious son
of Birmingham No. 44" petitioned
the new lodge for membership.

WHEN THE lodge was founded,
the annual dues were 25 cents, with
a $10 fee covering all initiatory
expenses.

The charter which lifted “No.
lto that of a regularly chartered
|lodge was granted on June 9, 1851

with 28 members recorded.

The men who lived in town
walked to their meeting along nar-
row paths except in front of the
few stores, where there were board
| walks. There was not a street light
in town and the few unpretentious
stores- were set well back from the
unpaved street.

Village institutions or services
such as a library, water works or
sewage disposal were not even an-
ticipated at this early date.

Farms surrounded the little vil-
lage, whose extent reached Willets
street. on the north, Brown street
on the south, the old Grand Trunk
right of way (now Hunter boule-
vard) on the east, and Chester
street on the west.
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THE MAIN ROAD, Saginaw
street, was just passable and there
were no parking ordinances, the
only limitation being to find suit-
able hitching posts for one’s “rig”
which an oceasional storekeeper
had provided to attract trade..

The store next to the tailor shop
and lodge rooms, located on the
corner of what is now Maple and
Woodward avenue, at that time
faced directly on Woodward ave-
nue and was in line with the tailor
shop. 2

This accentuated more than ever
the main street idea in the village.
The first quarters of the Masons
were definitely in the “heart of
the business section.”

The

fort of your family.

capable of.

of trouble-free service.
by those who know their business.
have taken place in plumbing and heating you are entitled to
the best, on the basis of your investment and the health and com-
Twenty-seven years of serving the Birming-
ham area, and constant awareness of new developments is vour
assurance that Bird & Griffith is the firm in whom to entrust your
| plumbing and heating.

New Comfort With Modern Fixtures

Prompt Service

Our endeavor has always been to give as quick
and thorough attention to vour needs as we are

259 E. Maple

Best Plumbing

from Attic to Basement

Whether you have plans for remodeling or building a new home,
youw'll want plumbing and automatic heating that will give years
Such service comes only from work done
With all the improvements that

Furnace room,
improved elements.

beautify
selection of

Crane-Line

Standard

Blrd & Griffith

PLUMBING & HEATING

laundry
bathroom, to all have been added new or
To make home keep-
ing easier and more comfortable, and to
your home be sure to check our

& Kohler
Bryant Automatic Heating
Gates Belts

MI 4-3832

room, Kitchen,

| above the
painted a series of allegorical fig- |

SOON AFTER receiving xts
charter, lodge members apparently
became convinced that their meet-
ing place might collapse.

The Jennings building was very
old and Alanson Partridge, Grand
Master of the lodge in 1881, is re-
ported to have said that the lodge
moved to other quarters because
the men were afraid the Jennings
building would fall down.

This accounts for the fact that
meetings were not held there after
1851 and also for the early estab-

The following 28 men were
charter members of Birming-
ham’s Masonic Lodge No. 44:
Douglas Keyes, John H. Dewey,
Hugh MeCurdy, Peter Rouse,
Beverly Beardslee, James M.
Hunt, John Nugent, Alanson
Partridge, Harvey Lee, John
Walton, Eli Blair, Samuel Blair,
Ebenezer Martin, Simon Case,
Ebenezer Raynale, Peter Dox,
Josephus Young, William Brown,
Seriba Blakeslee, Roswell T.
Merrill, Friend Belding, Cal-
vin Perin, George W. Merrill,
Joseph Parks, William McKellop,
Norman Gray, Cornelius Bray-
man and J. H. Johnson.

lishment of a more or less perma-
nent lodge room in the Hunt
building.

Here on the approximate site of
McBride’s Hardware today the
Masons gathered until 1872, meet-
ing in rooms over the general store.
This building later was moved to
Gray Court, cut in half and today
is two dwelling units.
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BECAUSE THE customers in
the first floor general store could|
hear the ritualistic work, the lodge |\
hired James B. Hunt, then a boy
in his 'teens, to practice his snare
‘drum in the store on meeting

from above.

Hunt later became a member of
the lodge, motivated perhaps by an
inner longing to find out what his
drumming had kept Him from hear-
ing as a young boy.

Tt was in 1872 that Capt. J.
Allen Bigelow, a member of the
lodge, planned the construction of
‘a new business block at the south-
west corner of Pierce and Maple.
Lodge members agreed to pay the
cost, $1,750, for the addition of a
second floor for which they received
a 99-year lease. .

1 v

FOR EXACTLY
remained . in this plaw For 50|
vears the narrow, \te"p stairway |
on the Pierce street side resounded |
to the ascent of many eager Ma-
sons. One quick turn in the stairs
| brought them to the anteroom, the
preparatory room and the Tyler’s
room.

The big hall was rather bare and
barn-like, to be sure, with a very
\h]gh ceiling. Around the walls
moulding, Wes Faint

;4
50 years they !

ures, meaningful to Masons, fig-
ures which with the pasisng years
became so dim and dingy as to hide
any resemblance to their original
| intent.

|  One large wood stove near the
Tyler’s room and a wood box filled
with heavy chunks of good oak
and hickory kept the hall in some
degree of comfort.
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THE MASTER’'S chair at the
extreme front, the Junior and Sen-
ior Warden's Stands at left and
right, the altar in the center and
an old Melodion, presented by Dr.
Ebenezer Raynale, completed the
main articles of furniture.

The lodge was called to order
on Dec. 23, 1873 at 4 o'clock to
dedicate its new meeting place—
an event highlighted by the at-
tendance of many state notables.

Alanson . Partridge, then Wor-

nights, drowning out the wvoices
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shipful Master of Birmingham
Lodge No. 44, presided. The Most
Worshipful Master of Michigan,
Hugh MecCurdy, officiated at the
dedication ceremony and delivered
the public address later at the
Methodist Church to an audience of
600.
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IT IS RELATED that the Bible
used on this occasion was loaned
by Mrs. Cardelia James, wife of
Squire James of Merrill street.
The old Bible of the lodge was then
being rebound.

Some of the lodge’s most active
and successful years were spent in
this location—now the site of
Shain’s Drug store.

A Masonic Temple association
was formed in 1918 which resulted
in the purchase of the present
home at the corner of Forest and
Woodward at a price of about
$14,000.

This property has, in past years,
played a different role in the life
of Birmingham than the one it now
has. Built in 1878 by Frank Ford,
Birmingham banker, it was con-
structed with red brick made by
Edwin Starr of Royal Oak and was
laid by William Robinson of Brown
street, Birmingham, whose wages
were $1 a day. Its original cost
was about $4,000, The 18-room
house was not completed until 1873
when Mr. Ford and his family
moved in.
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| THEY OCCUPIED the premises
luntil 1893, when Ford’s daughter
and Son-in-law, J. Bert Peabody,
came into possesion of the home

which was their residence until
1912,

After its sale then, it passed
through a number of hands until

acquired by Birmingham Lodge
No. 44.
A few years later in 1922, a

building committee composed of
P. W. Parmenter, Homer G. Leon-
ard and Harold H. Corson were
authorized to have plans drawn
and to proceed with the work of
remodeling the old house.

In May 1923, the present build-
ing was dedicated by the officers of
the Grand Lodge of Free and Ac-
cepted Masons of the State of
Michigan.

Interesting sidelights on the
growth ana advancement of the
village and city are revealed in the
|old records of the lodge. An item
in 1857 showed a payment of $9.41
‘fl)l 34 pounds of candles, but in
11865 progress entered thc picture
and a bill was presented for five
oil" lamps.
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THE MASONS reached forth
helping hands both to their own
members and those of other lodges.

In 1877 a bill of 75 cents was
paid for *“an indigent brother”
while in 1885 they contributed $10
to the relief fund raised at the time
of the Galveston, Tex. flood. -

Members of the lodge becams
so proficient in their ritualistic
work that they were invited to con-
fer work in other lodges in their
home state and in Ohio.

Through the years, the lodge has
played its part in the general af-
fairs of the community.

In 1953, the lodge has 491 mem-
bers.

Officers are Raymond J. Green,
Worshipful Master; John B. Mac-
Kay, Senior Warden; Fred Little,
Junior Warden; W. Lyle Bones,
secretary; Ernest E. Morrow (Pa~t
Master), Treasurer; John D,
Pound, Senior deacon; Dav1d Masz-
terton, Junior deacon; Alexander
Busby, Marshal; Harold E. La-
tham, Tiler; William W. Jones,
(Past Master), Chaplain; - and
Stewards Richard Broxton, Charles
W. Elder, William Barr, and J.
Parker Eckerson.




| We will style

your hair
ESPECIALLY

for

YOU

Our expert hair stylists
will show. you the hidden
beauty of your hair . . .
reveal it in all its true
,loveliness, with a person-
alized trim, set, and if
necessary, a soft, flatter-
ing permanent. There is
a hair style to suit your
personality . . . let us help
you to new hair beauty
the professional way!

ANN'S BEAUTY
SALON

176 N. Woodward MI 4-3536
2nd. Floor B’ham Nat. Bank Bldg.
Above Bodine’s

Send a Card . . .

you send a

Treasure Chest!

of friendliness and affection. Consideration of
others, thoughtfulness, be it ever so slight, makes
everyone’s life a richer adventure. The world is a
big and often lonely place. Make it a habit to re-
member important occasions in all your friends’
lives, and send them a card. You will be sending a
treasure chest mutually shared.

BODINES

172 N. Woodward MI 4-1177

A

OFFERED ON
FINEST QUALITY

GROCERIES

154 HUNTER ot MAPLE

Open every evening except Saturday
Sunday hours: 10 a.m. to 8 p.m.

{
.

PEABODY’S
| SUPER MARKET

MI 4-5222
WE DELIVER

Free Parking, Front & Rear of Store
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Soroptimists
Aim to Serve
Community

The Soroptimist Club of Bir-
mingham is the local unit of So-
roptimist International Associa-

| tion. Sponsored by the Soroptimist

| Club of Detroit, it is a classified

service club for women with mem-

| bership limited to executives, own-
lers, partners, managers, or officers

of established businesses, profes-

[sions or government services.

“Soroptimist” is formed from

| two Latin words; soror, sister; and

optime, best, and is ‘inseribed on
the club plaque which hangs in the
Birmingham Community House be-

| side other service club emblems.

Formally installed October 1,
1935, at a banquet at Devon Ga-
bles, the local club’s charter bears
the signatures of 16 women with
Vida MecGiffin as the first presi-
dent.

Of the original membership,
three charter members still hold
active classifications—Gertrude Ar-
nold of Arnold Studies, Mrs.
Gladys Heinze of the U. S. Post
Office Dept., and Mrs. Laura Tur-
ner of Devon Gables.

Prior to World War II, all meet-
ings were held at Devon Gables.
Today meetings are held twice a
month at the Community House
preceded by a dinner, with social
gatherings once a month at vari-
ous places,
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CARRYING OUT its main ob-
jective of service to the commu-
nity, the Soroptimist Club of Bir-
mingham has steadily enlarged its
scope during the years. Projects
have included dental aid to needy
women, making of layettes, dona-
tions to the Crippled Children's
Fund ‘and to the Oakland County
Infirmary during the depression
era,

Two hospital 'beds with bedding
have been donated to the Commu-
nity House for the use of any local
resident needing them. An electro-
phrenic respirator for use in the
treatment of polio has been given
to the Sister Kenny Polio Center
in Oakland County.

Since the deaths of two club
members, Laura Shroeder and Mrs.
Doris Thompson, the club has made
yearly monetary contributions to
cancer research.

A grant in memory of the late
Dr. John H. Gordon has been made
to the soon-to-be-erected South
Oakland Hospital.
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IN THE FIELD of extension,
the local group has sponsored clubs
in Mt. Clemens and Pontiac. In
January, 1951, the Soroptimist
Club of Rochester was chartered
with sustaining = member, Mrs.
Kathleen Pinter, as organizational
director.

The Venture Club of Birming-
ham, a group of young employed
professional and business girls,
was founded under the direction off
Mrs. Nina Noble.

Other club activities have in-
cluded hostessing the Midwestern
regional conference at Devon Ga-
bles and the Hotel Tuller several
years ago.

The president and two delegates
regularly attend spring and fall
conferences throughout the mid-
west, with delegate Bess Wright
attending the biennium convention

| at Washington, D. C., in July, 1952,
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TODAY’S TWENTY-NINE mem-
bers ave interested in working to-
ward the International Soroptimist
thema. “Working For the World
We Want” through right spiritual
values, education, service to the
community and cooperation in in-
dustry.

Present officers include Edith
Foster, president; Irene Hanley,
first vice-president; Bess Wricht,
second vice-president; Mary Dew-
ey, recording secretary; Mabel Sor-
enson, corresponding secretary;
and Marion Hawkins, treasurer.

Birmingham Men Served
On County’s 1st Jury

On July 17, 1820, the first Oak-
land country court was assembled
with Hon. William Thompson as
chief justice and David Bronsom
and Amasa Bagely as associates.

William Morris had been ap-
pointed sheriff and Sidney Dole, a
son-in-law of Dr. Ziba Swan, was
clerk of the court.

The grand jury of the county
court consisted of 17 members in-
cluding from this area: Elijah Wil-
lets, Dr. Ziba Swan, John Hamil-
ton, Elisha Hunter, Ezra Baldwin,
Asa Castle, Elijah S. Fish, Henry
0. Bronson and James Graham.
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City’s First
Civic House
(Continued from Page 1)

the staff and the welfare load at
the House was heavy. A thrift shop
was opened, where old clothing was
reconditioned and sold to the needy,
bringing some income to the House,
and rendering an urgent community
service.
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AN ATTEMPT proved unsuc-
cessful to have the Community
House excused from paying taxes
like other charitable and educa-
tional institutions were exempt
from. Added to this, the House
found it owed over $2,500 for ac-
crued sales taxes which it had
failed to pay on the many meals
being served at the House.

Through the years, the new Com-
munity House continued to grow in
serving the Birmingham area until
it has reached its present level of
community service development
well qualifying it as the “Heart of
Birmingham.”

Women once dominated the board
of directors for the House, but the
men of Birmingham since 1930
have taken a very active part in
its growth. The board now consists
of 15 members, eight women and
seven men,
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THE ANNUAL Roll Call con-
tinues to be the main source of
revenue in keeping the House fit.
Contributions, registered on a huge
thermometer each year, pay for
operational expenditures. Any sur-
plus pays for additional features
the board believes would make the
House more livable and comfortable
for the many people who use the |
numerous facilities.

During World War II, the many |
organizations which met regularly
at the House were joined by numer-
ous groups which aided in the war
effort. A blood donor bank, air raid
wardens, motor corps, nurses aide,
Red Cross and Civilian Defense
groups met regularly during the
duration of the war.
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TODAY THE Community House
is famous for the many activities
and organizations that use it and
the services it offers to the resi-
dents of Birmingham.
In 1952 370 different groups held
3,041 meetings at the House with
an attendance of 160,493,

Included in the list were such

organizations as the Birmingham
Community Council, University of
Michigan Alumni, Lions Club, Ki-
Club,

Used ’By
Thousands

wanis Birmingham Moms

This frame building, which

used to be at the southwest

corner of Maple and Bates streets, was Birmingham’s
first community meeting place between 1923 and 1930.
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Club, Birmingham Junior League,
Exchange Club and the Birming-
ham YMCA . .. and many others.

An employment bureau was
started at the House in 1925 and
today it is considered by many as
one of its most helpful features.
The bureau provides part or full-
time workers for domestic or bus-
iness work, free of charge to the
prospective employees.
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MOST POPULAR among the
younger set that uses the House
is the Ranch Room or “Teen Can-
teen.” It serves as a meeting place
for junior high and high school
students after school and on week-
ends.

The room is entirely maintained
by the teenage set and in 1952
alone, 13,000 teen-agers held 331
meetings in the Ranch Room.

The House attracts both young
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and-old for the youth and adult
education programs offered. “Lei-
sure ‘time” classes in bridge in-
struction, ceramics, clothing, mak-
ing of hooked rugs, jewelry and
silver work, painting and square
dancing have proved to be some of
the most popular activities of the
House.

There were 35,996 meals served
at the House in 1952 and 617
luncheons, teas, banquets and din-
ner groups. Thursday nights at the
Community House is family dinner
night. :

All meals at the House are
served at cost, one of the few
activities which is not expense-free.

Today the Community House is
operated by the Birmingham Com-
munity House Association as a
community projeet, unlike the
membership organization it started

out as.

‘Sickroom Cupboard’

Aids Those

Often spoken of as “The Heart
of Birmingham”, the Community
House really does have a heart.
It has been proven ai friend in
need to many in the area through
the services of its Sickroom Sup-
ply Cupboard.

Mrs. R. H. Mann and Mrs. E. G.
Hatch, attending a Red Cross con-
vention back in the depression
years of the early 1930s, brought
the idea back from Scotsdale, Pa.,
a mining town whose family aid
plan included medical supplies for
any emergency.

The idea was eagerly accepted
in Birmingham and the nucleus of
the present Cupboard was quickly
formed.
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A SERIES of parties furnished
funds to purchase bedding, hospi-
tal gowns, sickroom utensils and
thermometers, and the Cupboard
was in business.

Neighbor talking to mneighbor
spread the word and more and
more called on the Cupboard for
help in time of illness and injury.

It was not long before the resi-
dents of Birmingham began calling
on the Community House, laden
with gifts for the Cunboard. More
linens were donated. Crutches were
donated and clubs and organiza-
tions began taking an interest in it.

Larger eifts began to come in—
hosvital beds and wheel chairs.
And alwavs, the demand was just
a little ahead of the supply. Al-
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in Need

ways, it seemed, there were peo-
ple in the area who had had some
misfortune which sent them to the
Community House for help.
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ALTHOUGH the Cupboard is
often pretty empty, there is no
time limit set on any of the sup-
plies borrowed from it. The only
restriction placed ‘on the borrower
is that he sign a card, so the
Community House can keep track
of the supplies and get them back
as quickly as possible for the ben-
fit of some other unfortunate.

Many borrowers, according to
only return the items they have
had, but bring along others which
had to be purchased and no longer
are needed.

The visiting nurse, whose calls
are taken at the Community House,
has been responsible for many
learning of this particular service.
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SHE TOO, has been responsible
for many of the gifts received
there—her patients turn their pur-
chases over to the Cupboard after
| their own recoveries are complete.
| And so it goes. “The Heart of
| Birmingham” extends a helping
hand to anyone. In return, the help
of many comes back to the Commu-
nity House, a lasting ”thank you”
for “services rendered” or a friend-
!ly gesture from some Birmingham
| person or club, anxious to help his
|neig'hbor over a rough spot.
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Opened on March 17, 1930, the Present Birmingham
Community House at Bates and Townsend streets is
aptly called ‘“the house with a heart—the heart of

Birmingham?”.

IN WORRY-FREE STYLE

when your trip is arranged by
BIRMINGHAM TRAVEL AGENCY

Go by train, plane, or boat. Go East,
West, North, or South. Go the Birming-
ham Travel Service way. It lets you
really vacation with no time tables to
worry about or reservations to make,.

The next time you wish to plan a vaca-
tion, come in and let us help you. It’ll
save you money, time, and worry. It'll
let you have twice as much fun.

Wherever you wish to go — we make all
arrangements

Phone MI 4-5711 279 Hamilton

the Community House staff, not |

... and by gracious we mean deriving full pleasure

from a home that is smartly furnished, smart in
looks and smart from the standpoint of practical,
vears-long service. Whether your plans call for a
new home or for remodeling the present one, you
owe it to yvourself to become aware of the won-
derful developments in

* FORMICA  © TILE )
¢ LINOLEUM °* PAINT
° VENETIAN BLINDS

° WINDOW SHADES

° WALLPAPER

especially available at

T. E. HOGAN CO.

2865 WOODWARD AVE.
(3 Blocks S. of 12 Mile)

LI- 4-3300

Berkley

Ml



The Welfare of the Home Owners of
upplying the Home Needs of New

" THE BIRMINGHAM F

Active Broker Firms
of the
BIRMINGHAM REAL ESTATE BOARD

BENJAMIN & STEPHENS
FRED BLACKWOOD CO.
JUDSON BRADWAY CO.

MAX BROOCK, INC.
JOHN CHIERA
ELIZABETH DOWLING
WM. H. GILMORE

LOUIS HASCALL :
HOUSEMAN-SPITZLEY
HOWARD T. KEATING
E. W. KURTH
LEINBACH-HUMPHREY CO.
DAVID LEVINSON
GEORGE E. MARKLEY
GEO. WELLINGTON SMITH
SNYDER, KINNEY & BENNETT
WALSH, JAMES & WASEY
WATT, MANUEL & SNYDER

You Can Depend on th

BIRMINGH

The Birmingham Real Estate Board wa
the interests of real estate brokers and the
agents and brokers. Also, to promote and :
the transaction of the real estate business e
by the National Association of Real Estate

among its members in their dealings with o

The Birmingham F
Congratulates The
Completion - of 75 Year




the Birmingham-Bloomfield Area...and

Good Neighbors is the Obligation of
REAL ESTATE BOARD

e Integrity and Ability of

AM REALTOR

1s organized in 1923, for the advancement of
 protection of the public from unprincipled
maintain the high standard of conduct in
xpressed in the code of ethics as formulated
 Boards, as well as to enforce that code

ne another and with the public.

Real Estate Board
> Eccentric on the
s of Community Service

List’ Your Property

EXCLUSIVELY

With the Member Firms
of the |

"BIRMINGHAM
REAL ESTATE BOARD

For Best Results




BANISH

Large, Wash-
Day Chores

At your service. 20 Westinghouse
Automatic laundry machines. Use
as many as you like at one time.
Four large capacity, -hot air dry-
ers to fluff-dry your laundry. A

large 25 1b. washer for drapes,
bedspreads, scatter rugs ete., and
a dyeing service. We will also dry
and fold your laundry upon re-
quest.

BIRMINGHAM
LAUNDROMAT

Norman Barrett, Owner

1287 S. WOODWARD

2 Blocks south of Lincoln

MIdwest 4-8225

HOURS
MON.-FRI. 8-8
SAT. 8-5-

'FREE PARKING

OUR COMPLIMENTS TO THE ECCENTRIC
ON THEIR 75TH BIRTHDAY

Good service is really a double economy. First, because
it means fewer trips to,the repair shop. Second, because
this better quality service costs you nothing extra at
our station. Drive in regularly!

OUR SERVICE IS COMPLETE

e STANDARD MOTOR FUELS
AND LUBRICANTS

e ATLAS TIRES AND BATTERIES
o LIGHT MOTOR REPAIR e WASHING

LADD'S SERVICE

“RIGHT DOWN TOWN”
210 N. Woodward at Hamilton MI 4-9632

ROAD SERVICE ——

DDiclkcinsons

FENE APP&REL FOR GENTLEMEN

Men of the Birmingham area have
long accepted Dickinson’s as their store.
Whether their needs be for fine furnish-
ings or for a complete mew wardrobe,
our select stock of well-known brands in
men’s clothing and apparel have met
with the approval of the community’s
most exacting and immaculate dressers .
for many years.

CLOTHING
by
HART, SCHAFFNER
and MARX
VARSITY TOWN

-and
GRIFFON

HATS
by STETSON

SHIRTS
o by
MANHATTAN and
ENRO

HOSE
by
INTERWOVEN and
BRITISH BYFORDS

JEWELRY
by
KREMENTZ and

s HICKOK

NECKWEAR

by DAMON and
LONDONDERRY

SPORTSWEAR

by Manhattan, Enro
and Lordjeft

ALLIGATOR RAINWEAR

Dicilcinsonls

WABEEK BUILDING SAGINAW AT LAWRENCE
BIRMINGHAM PONTIAC




TWISTER PEEL

ot

ED ROOF

b

FROM HOME ON COOLIDGE ROAD, TROY TWP.

Red Cross assisted several victims of June 10, 1939 disaster

STERNAL'S

GOODYEAR

Tires and Tubes

FREE CUSTOMER
PARKING
In Rear of Store

STERNAL'S
WHIRLPOOL

WASHERS AND
DRYERS -

FREE CUSTOMER
PARKING
In Rear of Store

Through them

‘the finest

TIRES

408

we’ve endeavored
to let you know

where you can get

S. Woodward

“We Hope
You've Seen

These Before!

They've Appeared
Each Week In

The Eccentric

STERNAL'S

RCA Television
Radios and
Record Players

FREE CUSTOMER
PARKING
In Rear of Store

& TUBES

WASHERS & DRYERS
RADIO & TELEVISION
HOME APPLIANCES

Why Don't You Stop In?

STERNAL'S

STERNAL'S
for
- GENERAL o
ELECTRIC
APPLIANCES

FREE CUSTOMER
PARKING
In Rear of Store

OPEN EVENINGS TILL 8

FREE PARKING
IN REAR OF STORE

Phone
MI 4-3520

FRERSY 8
T
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Almost since the inception

groups of women with sympathy
and compassion for the young men
in army camps and overseas. They
were not, at that time, a part of
the National Red Cross Organi-
zation,

Their union with the national
group did not officially take place
until 1924, when Dr. E. A, Chris-
tian of the Pontiac State hospital
was named general chairman,

The fact that they had not pre-
viously been organized made little
difference—these workers noticed
little change in their activities.

No one paid much attention to
records and the like. They were
interested in one thing—offering a
helping hand to someone—anyone
—in trouble.
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THEIR WORK went on, mildly
enough until the depression years
brought about more and more ap-
peals for help. The Red Cross re-
sponded whenever possible, but
faced its first really big task in
1933.

The Oakland chapter received
one entire carload of cotton ma-
terial to be made up into garments
for depression victims.

The call for volunteers went out
of Pontiac. Birmingham women
jumped at the chance to help.

Volunteers flocked to Christ
Church Cranbrook where workroom
facilities were made available.
Others worked in their homes and
while the pile of unfinished material
rapidly dwindled, the stock of fin-
ished garments grew and grew.
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SKIRTS, shirts, dresses, chil-
dren’s clothes and undergarments
were made and sent to families
throughout the nation. The Bir-
mingham members of the American
Red Cross had met their first big
job and, in short order, had com-
pleted it.

Six years later another challenge
came their way when disaster
struck in their immediate neigh-
borhood.

This came when a high velocity
wind storm ripped through the
area early one morning, leaving
several Troy township families
without homes.

Members of the Birmingham Red
Cross stepped in. Dozens of volun-
teers surveyed the needs of the
families. They found them homes
with local families, in schools and
churches until their own dwellings
could be rebuilt or repaired.
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THEY SUPPLIED the victims
with food and clothing and medi-
cal service where needed.

It was done quickly and without
fuss. Little did that group of vol-
unteers think that within two
years they would face the greatest
task their organization had ever
taken on. They had no inkling
that, in December 1941, Jap planes
would launch their attack on Pearl
Harbor,

Birmingham’s Red Cross volun-
teers quickly recovered from the
initial shock, and in only a few
days were well on the way toward
marshalling their forces for the
job ahead.
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AS NURSES answered the call
to staff military hospitals at home
and abroad, the Red Cross trained
Gray Ladies and Nurses Aides to
help handle the demand in civilian
hospitals. These women took over
many of the tasks which called for
trained persons, but not the tech-
nical know-how of the registered
nurse.
The Red Cross provided the larg-
est corps of trained first aid work-
ers in history as the country pre-
pared itself against the possibility
of an attack at home.
In January, 1942, Harry Hoey,
now headmaster at Cranbrook, and
Mrs. R. K. Cunningham and Mrs.
John Blanchard, faced the problem
of lining up donors for whole blood
to stock blood banks, to be pro-
cessed into plasma and to meet
other medical demands.
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BEORE THE month was up, the

first blood bank was held at Cran-

[

g City Has Played
_Vital Role in
Red Cross Work

of the Oakland County Chap-

ter of the American Red Cross in 1917, Birmingham has
played an important part in its activities.

.As the clouds of war spread across the world in 1917,
women met in small groups throughout the Birmingham area
to roll bandages and perform whatever other tasks could be
done at home to make easier the life of the fighting man.

>

At that time these were simply™

brook Institute of Science.

Working ‘at top speed the com-
mittee pushed the program, and
the following year recorded 16,000
pints of blood donated.

But first aid, hospital Help and
blood did not end their World War
II work. There was more to be
done, and Birmingham took up its
share of the burden.

They recruited women for tha
camp and hospital volunteer serv-
ice. They donated such things as
radios, record players, games,
books and other small items “from
home” for servicemen in these
places, even before Mrs. Walter
Appel was named to head this
activity.

With Mrs. C. Theron VanDusen
as her assistant, Mrs. Appel super-
vised the recruiting and training
of 6,648 women in the county for
this one service alone.
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MRS. E. P. TURNER of South-
field township headed the group
working with the families of serv-
icemen. It was this group which
helped solve the problems arising
from separation of families, its
corresponding worry and lean army
paychecks, as well as those which
came when mothers went into fac-
tories, stores and offices to take
the jobs left vacant as men joined
the armed forces.

Mrs. T. W. Eustis, who served
a total of 11 years as home service
chairman, took over the job for the
county of trying to relay informa-
tion to families from servicemen
overseas. This group worked es-
pecially hard getting communica-
tions to and from men in enemy
prison camps.

It was Mrs. R. M. Knox who
arranged to have the families of
the prisoners-of-war meet, ex-

change information and discuss
mutual problems.
L4 v v

THE “PRODUCTION” and mo-
tor services divisions zoomed until
more than 5,000 volunteers were
working night and day. .

Workers made bandages and
items of clothing for the children
of military men. They drove thous-
ands of miles making deliveries,

|setting up blood banks, supplying

help to those in need, staffing can-
teens in the area, planning enter-
tainment for men stationed at
nearby bases and a hundred other
tasks.

There was no slacking off when
the war ended. Many of the men
still were hospitalized, still needing
the special attentions which came
from the Red Cross.
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BIRMINGHAM women, such as
Mrs. Sheldon Noble, Mrs. Bradlee
Pruden, Mrs. Ferd M. Broock and
others, found their duties increas-
ing. Mrs, Pruden has been given a
wider program to head for the
county, Mrs. Broock has become
field consultant for the midwestern
area.

Mrs. Karl Bailey headed a pro-
gram of teaching homemakers how
to prepare nutritious menus at a
time when food prices were at an
all-time high.

Others continued to help at un-
der-staffed hospitals, They contin-
ued entertainment programs for
the men at military bases and in
military hospitals.

They continued their blood bank
program, sewing sessions and
working with the National Chap-
ter, keeping a backlog of funds
available for disaster calls.
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THE WOMEN of the Birming-
ham Red Cross, whether their coun-
try is at war or not, have never
had any trouble in finding plenty
to do. They work here in their
own community, they work in the
county and they work in the na-
tional picture, doing their bit to
provide a little more than the bare
necessities of life for those in need.

From 1917 to 1953, and on into
the future, these women and others
like them, have kept and will keep
Birmingham well to the top of the
list for jobs well done.




Late Mrs. Ford Helped Form Hills Garden Club

The Bloomfield Hills branch of the Woman’s Nationalt

Farm and Garden Association was organized in July, 1929,
by the late Mrs. W. G. Thompson and her friend of many
years, the late Mrs. Henry Ford, who was president of the

4

national organization.

The Fox and Hounds was the
site of the first meeting, with Mrs.
Ford presiding. Mrs. Manley D.
Davis was named to head the new
group,  assisted by Mrs. W. D.
Thompson, first vice - president;
Miss Sarah Sly, second vice-presi-
dent; Mrs. Henry S. Booth, secre-
tary; Mrs. Frank Shuell, corre-
sponding secretary; and Mrs. Wal-
ter Morley, treasurer.

Shortly after this first meeting,
Mrs. Davis resigned due to illness
in her family, and Mrs. Thompson
took over the duties of president.

The first club roster listed 70
charter members. Their motive in
founding the Bloomfield Hills
branch was to cooperate with the
National Farm and Garden Asso-
ciation on a local level and to carry
out its aims,

! 7 v
OBJECTIVES OF THE group
then, as now, include the stimula-
tion of an interest in and a love
of country life, copoeration with
federal and state agencies for the

v

improvement of rural conditions,
and assistance of rural and urban
women in a realization of their in-
terdependence and mutual prob-
lems.

Farm and Garden strives to help
women through scholarships and
expert advice to the best training
in agriculture, horticulture and re-
lated professions, and to develop
opportunities for women so trained.

The group furnishes its members
with all possible opportunities for
the marketing of farm and garden
products and handiwork, and offers
opportunities for the exchange of
ideas.

Early meetings of the Bloomfield
Hills branch were held monthly in
the homes of members as they have
been through the years, with an
occasional gathering at Christ
Church Cranbrook. For this reason
membership is limited to 150 active
members.
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THE BLOOMFIELD CLUB has
been active in such projects as

roadside markets, greens markets,
and national and local flower shows.
In December, 1937, the club won
the Michigan Horticultural Soci-
ety’s Friendship Award of Merit
for its winter exhibit at Cranbrook,
and again in 1938 for its annual
flower show.

The group always has been in-
terested in educational  projects
and has been among the sponsors
of the summer course for house-
keepers, a part of the farm wom-
en’s program at Michigan State
College.

Each year they grant a scholar-
ship to a student of natural re-
sources at the University of Michi-
gan, and sends one or two teachers
every summer to the conservation
scholarship school at Higgins Lake.
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THE BRANCH has sponsored
the planting of “trees in public
places and has taken over the
planting at the Vaughan School in
the Hills. In the spring of 1952,
a plaque was erected there, honor-
ing the charter members.

During the World War II, the
club donated $500 to the Green-

‘house Project at Fort Custer and

assisted with the Fernery therapy

at Percy Jones Hospital.

Members have made gifts
through the years to hospitalized
veterans and patients at the Pon-
tiac Infirmary and, as part of their
international relations program,
send seeds abroad.

“Pennies for Friendship” are
collected further foreign
projects.

to
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AT PRESENT the Bloomfield
branch is participating in the na-
tional program for a memorial for
the late Mrs. Henry Ford.

Since its organization, the branch
has continued to bring to the com-
munity, speakers on all phases of
garden activities, and members
each spring open their gardens for
benefit pilgrimages for the Detroit
Garden Center and other worthy
organizations.

Periodically the club sponsors
flower arrangement classes by
various authorities.

Two parties have become tradi-
tional with the club: the picnic each
year in a member’s garden followed
by a garden tour, and the annual
potluck dinner each Christmas at
Christ Church Cranbrook.
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MRS. EDWARD P. TURNER is
current club president. Sharing the
slate are Mrs. Leroy G. Vandeveer,
first vice-president; Mrs. J. Hawley
Otis, second vice-president; Mrs.
Fred C. Jeynes, treasurer; Mrs.
Paro M. Thomas, recording secre-
tary; and Mrs. Karl Richards, cor-
[responding secretary.
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| Ma, the Cow’s
'Loose Again!

In the days when Birmingham
was a small village, many people
kept a cow on their premises as
well as a horse and the usual chick-
ens. The cows, when allowed to
roam, ruined so many gardens and
flower beds that Samuel C. Mlll.s.
Birmingham’s village marshal in
1878, had to do something about it.

A warning, therefore, was pub-
lished in The Birmingham Eccen-
tric “informing those of this town
who keep cows, that said cows
must not be allowed to run nights
or they will be found impounded
in the morning.”

We Handle
Nationally Known
Malkes . .., 0L i

Pardon us if we point with pride at the famous names for
which we're authorized dealers. Twenty years of selling ap-
pliances has shown us that Birmingham wants these great
products, and justifiably. They save ail around, in original
cost, in maintenance, in year after year of faithful perform-
ance, in effort when using them, in cost of operation, in
fact in every way. We’re very conscious of the importance
of service and take a back seat to no one in our effort to
provide the quickest at lowest cost. See us before you buy,
vou'll be the happier for it.

{-HOTPOINT -CROSLEY -WESTINGHOUSE®
'MOTOROLA ‘RCA. ‘MAYTAG ‘DUMONT

1435 S. Woodward, B’ham
3257 W. 12 Mile Rd., Berkley

That’s right, BIG VALUES, which result from offering
the finest appliances and from twenty years of know-
how getting the best bargains, coupled with demand
induced turnover, we bring you the best prices of all.
Don’t fail to check with

MILKS
APPLIANCES

UES!!

At Birmingham's best Prices

Hours

9 a.m. to 8 p.m.

MI 4-1814
LI 3-8833

Daily




Pythian Chapter
Organized Here

By 45 Members

Temple 94, of the Pythian Sis-
ters, ladies’ auxiliary of the
Knights of Pythias, Lodge 149, was
organized December 18, 1911, with
45 charter members.

Three of these first members,
Mrs. J. A. Wendorph, Mrs. Mio

Parks and Mrs. Hazel E. Lawler,|:

a past grand chief of Michigan,

still are members of the Temple. |

First presiding officer was Mrs.
Stanley Todd. Early meetings were
held on the second floor of the
building at 183 N. Woodward, and
later on the second floor of the
Birmingham Theater building on
S. Woodward.

The days of the depression of the
1930’s found the temple holding its

meetings in the homes of members | |
The eighty member group now|

gathers twice a month at the Bir-
mingham Community House.

¥ £ 1

TOUCHSTONE of the Pythians
is friendship, teaching its mem-
bers to be interested in public af-
fairs, to work for the social bet-
terment of their community, and
cherish the qualities of loyalty and
respect for law,

Temple 94 has contributed large-
ly to veterans’ organizations, fur-
nished two hospital beds at the
Community House, and raised
money for cancer and polio re-
search.

In December, 1936, Temple 94
celebrated its silver anniversary,
and in December, 1951, marked the
fortieth year of its founding.
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ROBERTA DAVIDSON, most
excellent chief, heads the present
slate of officers. Others are Dor-
othy Walker, excellent senior;
Edith Follman, excellent junior;
Daisy Gowans, manager; Evelyn
Latham, secretary; Edith Adams,
treasurer; Kathleen Ling, protec-
tor; Elsie McKee, guard; and Ilau
Mattice, past chief. !

mer school teacher here.

A FAR CRY FROM THE BIRMINGHAM OF TODAY, this picture is of the Hugh Irv-
ing.Hardware store known 75 years ago as “the largest store in town.”
stock inside and outside, the store was prepared to satisfy nearly every need. The shopper
could buy a plow or a bottle of patent medicine; bird seed or a gas stove; a wheelbarrow
or a new hair spring for a cherised watch along with a multitude of other items too nu-
merous to mention. The store was located at 205 N. Woodward approximately where the
Huston hardware stands today and, according to the vertical sign at the left, right next
door to The Eccentric office. The gentleman at the extreme right was Charley Brush, for-

Displaying its

Southfield Legion’s 1st Meeting Held in Florist Shop

Southfield post 407 of the Amer-
ican Legion held its first meeting
in 1944 in a 10 Mile road florist’s
shop. Oscar Cook was named first
commander of the post. Other orig-
inal officers were Fordon A. Niles
and William D. Wissert, present
post adjutant,

From 15 members and a small

rented building, the post has now
grown to 80 members and perma-
nent home, the Southfield Town-
ship Veterans Memorial Home of
the American Legion, situated at
26541 West 12 Mile road.
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PRESENT OFFICERS . include

Thomas J. Martin, commander;
Martin Poff, Sr., and George Mar-
tin, Jr., vice-commanders; William
Wissert, Donald Brown, David
Haight, Louis Oleksiak aund Alex
Anderson.

Activities include post meetings,
parties, dances, and teen-age pro-
grams.

Resisto

and Respected by Every
Well Dressed Man

and you'll choose none other than a suit by

Society-Brand

Clothes

Dignified richness marks Society Brand Clothes, The smooth,
smart appearance comes from superb tailoring and a most flatter-
ing selection of fabrics, both domestic and imported. These cus-
tom tailored or ready to wear suits, sportcoats and topcoats are
set off to greatest advantage with our

Enro Shirts

1 SELF
CONFORMING

Hats

In these days of mass production there is an increasing aware-
ness of the individuality bestowed by hand craftsmanship. Twenty-
seven years of tailoring experience, begun under the old school
emphasis on integrity and pride in workmanship, is your assur-
ance of receiving the most for your investment. We are proud
of our knowledge of tailoring and take great satisfaction in
knowing that when a customer leaves with our Society Brand
Clothes he leaves with the best.

MATTHEW'S

Twenty-seven years of service in alterations,
continuing for ladies and gentlemen,.

- § 288 E. Maple (Briggs Bldg)

Open Dgily 8 am. to 6 p.m.
Friday 8 am. to 9 p.m.

Tailoring Known

MI 4-1777

Free Parking Rear of Store

]
1
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Walnut Lake
Women’s Club |
5 Years Old ‘

Early in February, 1948, every
woman in the Walnut Lake area
received a telephone call from Mrs.
Richard McKay requesting their
presence at the Walnut Lake school
in order to form a club.

At that time there were few
social activities for local women
and no community organization to
fill this lack.

From the February 12, 1948
meeting grew the Walnut Lake
Women’s Club, chartered with 36
members whose aim was to pro-
mote friendship along with civie
projects.

The fledgling organization held
its first meetings at Walnut Lake
school. Mrs. Eleanor Osterback was
elected president, with Mrs. Don
Harrison, vice-president; and Mrs.
Parker Rockwell, secretary and
treasurer.
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THE PRESENT CLUB roster
lists 50 members, with Kay Rock-
well, president; Pauline Heller,
vice-president; ~ Dorothy Phelps,
secretary; Jean Sutton, treasurer;
Charlotte Snyder, corresponding
secretary; and Evelyn Martin,
membership chairman.

Regular monthly meetings are

held the first Tuesday evening of
each month at West Bloomfield
Township Hall. Discussion of a
timely topic is followed by a social
hour, with membership divided in-
to units comprising gardening,
bridge, ceramics, sewing, needle-
work, knitting, and physical edu-
cation,
. The club has been instrumental
In securing bus service to the area,
and the construction of uniform
mail-box supports.
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IT HAS sponsored clean-up
drives and property owner partici-
pation in planting flowering shrubs.
The club takes an active interest
in social welfare through CARE
and local services, and awards two
Girl Scout Camperships annually.

The club sponsors an annual
Harvest Supper and Dinner, bridge
luncheon, and the Community Sing
around the Christmas tree which
the club purchased and had planted
on the school grounds.
. By means of several money-mak-
ing projects yearly, a building fund
is being accumulated for a com-
munity house to serve the club and
other organizations.

Ist Eastern Star |
Members Met 3«

By Lamplight

An original charter hanging in
the chapter room of the Masonic
Temple, 327 South Woodward ave-
nue, 1s a constant reminder to Bir-
mingham members of the Order
of the Eastern Star of its inception
fifty-five years ago.

The first meeting place was a
room above the Whitehead and
Mitchell general store, now the
site of Shain’s drug store. At that
time, December 22, 1897, the room
heated with a large round stove
and lig'hyed with kerosene lamps.

Presiding over the infant chap-
ter was first matron, the late Mrs.
Emma (Tibbils, with Isaac N. Bak-
er as patron. On December 10,
1902, the chapter joined in the
formation of the Oakland County
Association of the Order of the
Eastern Star. Today 21 chapters
with approximately 6,000 members
represent the county OES,
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THE BIRMINGHAM OES mov-
ed its meetings to the Masonice
Temple, its present home, in 1922.
Five years ago the chapter cele-
bra_ted_ its Golden Anniversary with
a jubilee banquet and initiation,
having as their guests the grand
officers of the state and many old-
er members of the chapter.

Present were 32 living Past Ma-
trons and Mrs. Hattie Todd, old-
est in years of membership havy-
Ing joined in®*1899. Mrs. Todd
served as Matron of the chapter in
1904,

Since its formation the chapter
has held its regular metings the
first Wednesday of each month.
Current officers ineclude Worthy
Matron Mrs. Isaac Kidd, Worthy
Patron 0. Darwin Hillman, Mrs.
E. E, Puls, Mrs. J. Parker Ecker-
sen, Mrs. Edwin Minks, Miss
Blanche Brooks, Mrs. David Mas-

terton, Mrs. R. V. York s
William Jones, e Mra.|‘



_ the touch that adds
immeasurably
to any home

CUSTOM
LAMP SHADES

and

PICTURE FRAMING

Fresh distinctiveness and individuality are qualities
that reflect both the object and taste of the home-
maker. Too, there is no end of enjoyment in the proc-
ess of choosing materials, patterns and seeing them
develop as you envisaged. To aid you in this pleasant
task we have a particularly fine selection of fabrics
and parchments for lamp shades. Periodically we
stock fine prints and always have an endless variety
of styles for picture frames. We would certainly en-
joy discussing and helping you in thus decorating
your home.

Ruth Haigh

CUSTOM LAMP SHADES
179 Pierce MI 4-2002

IN TOWN

Kirst in style. .,

foremost in value

| since 1892 l ‘ . —

Your Health

—our first concern

PRESCRIPTIONS
Promptly Filled

We Pick Up and Deliver
All Prescriptions

' : : - Twenty-one
NEW AN Years Experience

DRUG
STORE

MODERN

is your assurance of our thorough
knowledge of the pharmacy busi-
ness. Your prescriptions are filled ac-
curately, time after time,.and are
turned over to you only after double
checking the results.

For 60 years now SODA
men have sought the foremost style, finer fit and FQUNTAIN <
longer wear provided by famous Florsheim Quality
o e e S Saiiolate Polks Latest
v:: the superior quality thatis America’s ompiete bdby
standard of fine shoe value, Department Drugs

Approved

Magazines and
Also— Newspapers

Since your health is our first
concern, it becomes a duty for

, HIGH QUALITY SHOES FOR MEN 24 Hr. Film Service ’ us to stock all drugs that your

doctor might order., We have to
be as fully equipped and in-
- WESLEY formed ubou! these as the doc-

TGY'OI’ - Bondshlre ICE CREAM tors who assign their use. -

WESLEY
DRUGS

by
100 W. 14 Mile Rd. (Cor. of Pierce)

PIED PIPER and GERBERICH

- WILLIAMS BOOT SHOP

115 W. Maple . MI 4-7344 Open Daily 9:30 am.

50 YEARS OF SELLING SHOES Phone MI 4-7563 to 10:30 p.m.




Beloved and respected in the little village of Birmingham

during her lifetime, Martha Baldwin still is rememberqd by |
present day citizens as one of the unique and prominent

characters that played an important part in the cultural

growth of the city.

“Mattie”, as she was familiarly known, was interested in
the civic development of her home town and was influential

in the formation of many civie

societies and associations.

It was
started a movement to place the
hitching posts i Birmingham far
enough from the walk so horses
could not nip the flowers from the
ladies’ hats. This grew into the
Village Improvement Society which
was founded in 1884 and still was
in existence after her death in
1913,

She is perhaps best known for
the founding of the Library Asso-
ciation in 1867. The present Bir-
mingham public library, which re-
sulted from the efforts of the so-
ciety, is named in her honor, as a
tribute to one who had done so
much in its interest.
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BALDWIN SCHOOL, erected in
1918, was made possible by a fund
established by Martha Baldwin’s
will. The park at Southfield and
W. Maple avenues, which bears her
name, was a gift to the city.

Every phase of civic development
interested the energetic Mattie.
She was the organizer of the
Greenwood Cemetery Association
and was influential in establishing‘
the city’s waterworks system in
1895.
She instituted the Ladies’ Liter- !

Martha Baldwin who#—

ary Club in Birmingham and was
a member of the organization until
her death.

| state for her advanced and positive
| | views on the rights of women, for

active in the campaign for suffrage
in Michigan,

| | scrupulously clean village and she

| | eral ordinances relative to the en-

To each of these interests, Miss
Baldwin devoted no small amount
of her time and money with the
result that she was loved by all
| Birmingham.
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SHE HAD BEEN a teacher for
more than 30 years, 25 of them
in Detroit where she served as
[ principal of the Norvell school until
|'her retirement on pension in 1897.
Before teaching in Detroit, Miss
Baldwin taught in the Old Academy
in Birmingham, one of the famous
| educational institutions of the state

|in its day. She also had a private
| school for girls in her home and

taught things that were then con-

| | sidered far advanced for that era.

Martha Baldwin was widelyy

MATTIE PAUSES TO TALK
Her horse and buggy

WITH VILLAGE RESIDENT
was a familiar scene

known and honored throughout the

she was an ardent suffragist and
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MATTIE'S CREED called for a

was often seen riding around in her
carriage with a sharp eye alert for
means of further beautifying vil-
lage property. It was no unusual
sight to see her dismount from the
carriage, pick up a tin can or paper
and throw it into the back of the
vehicle and drive on.

She was instrumental in influ-
encing the town board to pass sev-

| hancement of the village’s natural
| beauty. 4
Through her efforts, it was a

violation of law to tie a horse to
a shade tree because it might in-
jure the bark of the tree. Mattie
once had a Methodist preacher ar-
rested for such an offense.
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DISCOVERING that residents
were particularly careless about
throwing waste papers into the
streets, she had large wire baskets
placed about the town as recep-
tacles. i

To further assure immaculate
cleanliness, she hired “Paddy” Wil-
son, the cemetery Sexton, as gen-
eral clean-up man.

Born on a’ farm north of Bir-
mingham in 1840, she was the
daughter of Edwin and Aurilla
Baldwin. Her father was one of
the original settlers of this area,
having come here from Vermont

s
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HOUSEHOLD

® HARDWARE

BUILDERS

© HARDWARE
® PAINT

® SPORTING
GOODS

® TOOLS

While we're congratulating The Eccentric on its seventy-fifth
anniversary, we’d like to take a few bows on our own achieve-
ment of finishing Fifty Years in the hardware business. We've
enjoyed our years of pleasant business relations in Birmingham
immensely. We've tried to be fair and square in all of our deal-
ings with the public and as long as we remain in business we
shall continue to give true value and courteous service. These

are the things on which we have built our business.

Birmingham

‘1 52 North Woodward

Hardware

Phone Mldwest 47524

L. J. Slusser, Prop.

il
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and purchasing his land from the
government in 1821. Both of her
parents = were descended from
Revolutionary stock,

Birmingham owes much to Miss
Martha Baldwin for her unfailing
interest and efforts in years gone
by to make this a fine community.

International
Relations Class

Founded in 1919

For thirty-four vears, the Ruth
Shain Class in International Af-
fairs has been meeting weekly, first
at the Old Community House and,
since 1929, in its new counterpart.

Founded in 1919 by Mrs. Charles
U. Shain, still its president and
class director, the class draws an
average of sixty-eight to its ses-
sions which are open to all inter-
ested persons.

In addition to Birmingham, the
class roster included members from
Pontiac, Holly, Waterford, Walled
Lake, Pleasant Ridge, Royal Oak,
Ferndale and Detroit,.

Sponsored jointly by the Bir-
mingham branch of the American
Association of University Women
and the Birmingham ~Women’s
Club, the class serves as an inter-
national committee for both these
groups and is so listed on their
calendars.
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FROM A GROUP of twelve in
1919, the alumnae roster now num-
bers six hundred, all of whom are
Invited to attend the class’ annual
May reunion at which a noted
speaker is presented.

By means of panels, reports,
roundtable discussions, and lectures
by international experts, through-
out the years the class has studied
and.analyzed the role of foreign
affairs, striving to come to a better
understanding of world problems.

A partial list of topics covered
over the years reads like a chro-
nology of the turbulent Twentieth
Century—German reparations aft-
er World War I, the abandoning
of the gold standard, the rise and
fall of European dictatorships, and
now the atomic bomb and the strug-
gle against communism.
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THE CLASS HAS been guided
and directed throughout the years
by its founder, Mrs. Shain. Long
active in Birmingham civie proj-
ects, Mrs. Shain has striven for
thirty-four years to bring the
women of the area an outlet for
their interest in the affairs of
state and nations.

Her hope is to provide an “op-
portunity for an exchange of opin-
ions and viewpoints,” maintaining
that “democratic expression is the
keystone of government.”

Mrs. George Green is current
secretary and treasurer of the
class which meets from October
through June.

He Must Have Been
All Puckered Out

A Birmingham man, on a day’s
visit in the big city, went to a
Detroit druggist and got some
medicine. Somehow the druggist
made a mistake. When the Bir-
mingham man got home, he took
a dose of his medicine, but what
he got was a dose of alum.

Commented The Birmingham Ec:
centric (1878): “They’ve been try-
ing to pull the pucker out of him
with a stump puller for the past

week.”
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HOME OF...

From our shelf to yours . . . at lowest cost!
That's our motto. It means big food savings
for you, if you shop here regularly.

For many years our store has been the : . . . FINEST
headquarters for food shoppers who demand | SELECTIONS
quality as well as moderate prices. We have b AND

e b 2 . LARGEST
been pleasing Birmingham area families \ : QUANTITIES

who buy food on this basis down through
the years and it is in this manner that we
will continue to serve them in the future
. ... May we invite you to become acquaint-
ed with, and avail yourself of the facilities
of our many complete food departments.

@® BEST BRANDS OF CANNED,
FROZEN and PACKAGED FOODS

® FINEST and FRESHEST
FRUITS and VEGETABLES

® COMPLETE DAIRY DEPARTMENT

® SPECIALTY and PARTY FOODS, BEER
and WINE

® AWREY BAKERY DEPARTMENT
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